Lake Forest, Illinois

NEW NUMBERED SERIES • Volume 3, Number 3

Fall 2010

# 100 Years: Churches of Saints Patrick and Mary

by Arthur H. Miller, Jr.



St. Patrick's Church

Photo by John Litchfield



St. Mary's Church

Photo by John Litchfield

In December 2010, Lake Forest's beautiful Church of St. Mary celebrates the centennial of its dedication on Sunday, December 11, 1910 by Archbishop Quigley of the Chicago Archdiocese. St. Mary's had been founded in 1875 and in 1925, when the parish celebrated its fiftieth anniversary, Cardinal Mundelein described it, according to a newspaper report quoted in the 1975 parish centennial book, Church of St. Mary, 1875-1975, as "the elder daughter of more than 400 sister churches that claim the care of the head of diocese and the close neighbor of a city that is destined to be one of the greatest in the world."

But St. Mary's is also the sibling parish of west Lake Forest's St. Patrick's. This year the 1910 "old," red-brick St. Patrick's is celebrating its centennial, with both edifices being designed by the same outstanding architect, Henry Lord Gay. Today St. Mary's remains one of the leading parishes in the Archdiocese of Chicago. St. Patrick's too has grown to become a major center in its own right, serving ca. 1,800 families in a new church, but guarding still its 1910 building, the soul of its heritage. This article recognizes the special legacy to the community of these two historic structures.

## Parishes' Histories to 1910

The Church of St. Mary, grand as it has been, was begun in 1875 as a mission church of St. Patrick's, Everett (now southwest

Lake Forest). The roots of St. Patrick's Church and also St. Mary's go back to 1840, when ships collided and went down in the lake, necessitating a Catholic cemetery, today's St. Patrick's Cemetery on Telegraph Road. On that property, too, in 1844 the community of farm residents in the area grew large enough for a log church, St. Michael's, and it served parishioners in four townships initially. That church was sold and became a residence, and the church moved north to Meehan's Settlement. This was a mission of another log church at Little Fort, soon called Waukegan. The new parish was founded in 1849, with an 1855-completed brick church near the intersection of Route 60 and Waukegan Road.

The Reverend J. W. Kennedy had purchased the property on Illinois Road at Green Bay in 1867 for a mission there near the recently founded Lake Forest. Later it was again St. Patrick's Reverend James J. McGovern, arriving at that church in 1875, who led the effort to found St. Mary's and to erect a substantial wood-frame, steepled church on the present site of that church, a building larger and taller than the east-of-the-tracks First Presbyterian Church of Lake Forest erected in 1862, thirteen years earlier. The next year a parish house too was built next to St. Mary's, and, according to the 1975 history, that became the main church, with St. Patrick's the mission, served by the same priest, Father McGovern, who moved into the new St. Mary's rectory.

# PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

Dear Fellow Residents and Property Owners of Lake Forest:

In 1902, gas lights were installed in Lake Forest by the North Shore Gas Company. Many of the Lake Forest homes of that era (including my home) were illuminated by gas as well, since electricity had been brought to the City only six years earlier.

Those gas lights became the logo for the Lake Forest Preservation Foundation in 1976 when our founder and then first President, Edward H. Bennett Jr., looked out his window from "Pembroke Barn" on Green Bay Road and saw the gas light in the driveway. He took a pad and pen and sketched the lamp, thereby creating the logo for the newly formed LFPF.

That same logo appeared on the first Newsletter masthead and is still in use 34 years later. After burning brightly for over 100 years, the gas lights were shut off and threatened with extinction in 2003 as a potential cost savings. Thanks to a \$15,000 grant to the City in 2004, your Preservation Foundation was able to help relight the 438 historic gas lights throughout town, still broadcasting their warm glow even today.

The train station at Market Square hopefully will be getting some much needed attention with a new roof, painting, and related repairs. While not being executed to the vision of the study we commissioned and funded, due to the current economy, this will certainly provide visible and necessary improvements to last until a more comprehensive restoration can be undertaken.

This summer we held another extraordinary Family Fair in Market Square, including extremely popular narrated trolley tours of historic homes in town. Many thanks to CROYA who helped out with a lot of the work at the Fair. We marched in the Lake Forest Day Parade, winning third prize, and held a recordattendance program at the Meadowood Farm Historic District in September as part of our ongoing series "Exploring Lake Forest's Neighborhoods."

We hope you were able to attend some or all of these events and that you will be intrigued by those we have planned. Coming up in the near future is a program on historic windows followed by a reception. Capping the year end once again is our annual members-only Holiday Party in a private home.

Our Board members and volunteers work hard to make this a vibrant organization, dedicated to the preservation of the historic visual character of our town. For our members, we would like to express a sincere "thank you" for your loyal support.

In this issue is a list of our current members and a tear-off membership application. If you're not already on that list, we hope you will consider becoming a member of the Lake Forest Preservation Foundation.

Tom Daly, President

# FOREST PARK UPDATE

In response to the City Council's May approval of the Conceptual Master Plan for Forest Park, two aspects of the plan have been addressed: studies of two park concerns and formation of a committee.

This past summer an engineering study was undertaken to determine the stability of the bluff. In addition, a traffic study was created to evaluate the car/pedestrian usage of the park. There appears to be no immediate threat of erosion along the majority of the bluff at present. However, there is still need of attention to the drainage issue. Traffic results are still being evaluated.

Throughout the summer careful consideration and time has been given to the formation of a community committee: one which will guide this project to completion and is in the process of setting up a 501(c)3. Ralph Gesualdo was selected to chair this committee and is willing to volunteer his time to the success of Forest Park. The committee is comprised of community leaders with varied interests and expertise relative to this project.

Forest Park, like all of Lake Forest, is special to everyone. A group of committed citizens is ready to volunteer time and raise money to protect this treasured landscape for the benefit of everyone today and tomorrow. Be patient and support us. The committee is proceeding with our community's best interest at heart.

The Forest Park Committee

# Visit us on the web @ www.lfpf.org

St. Patrick's 1855 church building, according to the church's website history, was not lucky. In 1883 it was rebuilt after serious foundation problems developed. Then in 1895 the church was struck by lightening. From this history it is not clear if the church moved then to Everett further south before lightening struck again, or if the move took place after the church burned to the ground in 1908.

By 1906, when the Reverend Francis T. Barry began as pastor at St. Mary's, there were forty families at the St. Patrick's mission and one-hundred and fifty families at St. Mary's, but income was low, with the priest even going to farms for food. By 1908 St. Patrick's was gone, with the parishioners attending St. Mary's, until their church could be replaced. The 1875 St. Mary's structure, which had had been "rickety" when Father Francis J. Barry arrived, soon was in danger of collapse: the steeple was taken down and the walls were braced from the outside.

New churches for both parishes were needed, and church income was up. This resulted in part from Father Barry's influence and in part due to the influx of elite, wealthy, and sometimes Catholic Chicagoans on the new estates, such as the young Mrs. Joseph Medill Patterson (Alice Higginbotham), west of Lake Forest (Westwood Farm, Howard Shaw, 1905).

# Architect Henry Lord Gay (1844-1921)

The architect chosen for both churches was Chicagoan Henry Lord Gay, who at the age of twenty in 1864, during the Civil War, came to booming Chicago, and entered the office of architect W.W. Boyington. He had been, since grammar school, in the office at New Haven, Connecticut, of Sidney Mason Stone (1803-1882), who in turn had studied there under the eminent architect Ithiel Town (1784-1844), designer of many New England churches, as would Stone as well (Church of St. Michael, New Haven, 1855). Thus, Gay was at least the third in a line of U.S. architects specializing in churches.

By 1867 he had begun to practice on his own, and designed the First Congregational Church in Chicago, destroyed in the 1871 Fire. In 1880 Gay went to Europe, and entered the competition at Rome for the national monument to King Victor Emanuel, ending up with second place from among hundreds of architects, according to A.T. Andreas' *History of Chicago...* v. 3 (Chicago: Andreas, 1886), 68-69. Gay joined the A.I.A. in 1874 and was made a Fellow in 1887. He returned to Chicago in 1883. He designed summer places at Lake Geneva, culminating in the 1901 grandly-scaled, highly-visible, classic Younglands/Stone Manor. By that time, too, he was moving to San Diego, and became a major contributor to the developing architecture there, including the landmarked Sanford Hotel, 1913. Clearly, though, his work with church architecture and in the Chicago area continued in 1909-10 with St. Mary's and St. Patrick's.

# Architectural Character

Church of St. Mary

The style of St. Mary's particularly is a masterful blend of Romanesque for the nave and windows and Gothic for the buttressed towers, incorporating elements of prominent Presbyterian models in town: the Norman (Romanesque) and Shingle Style First Presbyterian Church (1887, Cobb and Frost), the Gothic Church of the Holy Spirit (1902, Alfred Granger) and the Collegiate Gothic, similarlytowered Lily Reid Holt Chapel at Lake Forest College (1900, Frost and Granger). Culturally assimilationist and contextual in intent at the heart of the mostly Protestant community, it manages firmly to express Roman Catholic motifs: the rounded Romanesque windows, the classically centered entry (in contrast to the typically Richardsonian-plan side entries of the others), and the limestone details and pediments over the three north-façade, front doors. The exterior nave side-wall cornices are machicolated, recalling subtly medieval French fortress churches with openings from above to throw things at invaders (such as heretical groups). Henry Lord Gay created an edifice for St. Mary's that fit in architecturally while also clearly proclaiming its two-thousand-year Roman heritage.

The 1970 remodeling of St. Mary's was a direct outgrowth of the Second Vatican Council, convened in the early 1960s. New directives and liturgical changes were undertaken and then in 1967 Father James D. Brett was appointed, his first major project being the remodeling of St. Mary's following the new direction of Vatican II. He was assisted by Father Richard J. Douaire, Loyola University and St. Mary-of-the-Lake Art History professor. Douaire was vice-president of the American Society for Church Architecture (ASCA) and was a member of the Archdiocesan Commission on Art and Architecture. The design for the remodeling of the church, beginning in the summer of 1970, was entrusted to Lake Forest architect Norman Abplanalp (today a member of the Preservation Foundation Board of Directors). Abplanalp was recommended by Douaire for the architect's knowledge of church architecture, the two having served together on the ASCA.

According to the 1976 St. Mary's history, the Church needed "several changes" and few of the older Archdiocesan buildings "have lent themselves so well to remodeling toward the objectives of the council's reforms" (pp. 22-23). Following the new guidelines "superfluous altars were eliminated" and a "new altar, lecturn, and presidential chair were designed." The lighting was significantly improved, with a north glass wall to the sanctuary letting in light from the vestibule and making the whole space feel larger. The original oak woodwork was restored, long buried under paint; the interior's new simple tone was set by the oak against a white background.

# Church of St. Patrick

St. Patrick's, built in the smaller scaled, rural village setting of Everett also in 1910 and by Henry Lord Gay, in turn, is a smaller version of Gay's St. Mary's, with one tower on the north side rather than two towers (one extending above the nave at St. Mary's), Romanesque rounded windows, vestigial machicolation on the sides, but here topped with a steeple, giving the 1910 St. Patrick's its own village church character.

In the 1970s St. Patrick's grew in what now was west Lake Forest, with a Parish Center built for education. The new space was pressed into use also for Masses as the 1910 sanctuary became too small for some services by the 1970s, with much growth in the area in the period. By 1986 St. Patrick's was remodeled as had been St. Mary's, simplicity and restoration being the guides as at St. Mary's earlier. Steps, accessible walkways, and restrooms were added. The white-painted exterior brick was sandblasted, according to the web parish history, and the brickwork was repointed. The Resurrection window was expanded to bring in more light, and one of two altars was removed, in keeping with the new spirit. New Stations of the Cross by member artist Franklin McMahon were a superb final touch for the church then serving three-hundred and sixty-five families.

But all that work on St. Patrick's was in the same year as the enactment of the "Reagan" income tax cuts, one major effect of which was a building boom in west Lake Forest. In 1995 ground was broken for a new church and space for meetings and offices, with the first service in December of 1997, and formal dedication by Cardinal George on March 22, 1998. The church is reported in the web history as now serving one-thousand, seven-hundred and eighty families, a five fold growth in the parish in a quarter century. Today, though, the century-old, 1980s honored Henry Lord Gay "old" St. Patrick's continues to serve the congregation as a chapel, and remains the anchor of this west side Lake Forest community, called today Settlers Square.

Indeed, these were the first settlers in the 1830s and 1840s, those founders of the St. Patrick's Cemetery and its first small St. Michael's log church of 1844. The 1910 church building, tied as it is to the history also of St. Mary's, stands as continuity to a heritage of Catholic service and fortitude through trying as well as good times. As it celebrates its centennial, as a sister church to St. Mary's in 2010, it recalls

the age-old village churches of Ireland and Europe that nurtured this congregation especially in its first century and a half. Its handsome lines, derived from one of the best church architects of its day Henry Lord Gay whose own educational ties went back to the early Republic, earn it an important place among Lake Forest's defining historic structures.

#### Conclusion

The two linked parish churches of St. Patrick's and St. Mary's together add significantly to the architectural heritage of the city and represent a vital part of its legacy to the future. Recognizing the outstanding architectural character of the two century-old church edifices is one way of sharing in the centennial celebrations of these two landmarks, each a defining element for its neighborhood.

Some Printed Sources

Andreas, A. T. History of Chicago... v. 3. Chicago: A.T. Andreas, 1886.

Church of St. Mary, 1875-1975, Lake Forest, Illinois. Lake Forest: Church of St. Mary, 1975.

*Geneva Lake: Stories From The Shore*, ed. Anne Celano Frohna. Williams Bay, WI: Nei-Turner Media Group, 2009.

Schaefer, Christopher. *Brief History of City Point in New Haven, Connecticut.* Revised edition, 2009. <a href="http://www.citypointnewhavenconnecticut.net/">http://www.citypointnewhavenconnecticut.net/</a>

The Stained Glass Windows of the Church of St. Mary. Lake Forest: St. Francis of Assisi Circle, 2004.

Viollet-le-duc, E. *Annals of a Fortress*, translated by Benjamin Bucknall. London: Sampson Low, Marston, Low and Searle, 1875.

Withey, Henry F. and Elsie Rathburn Withey. *Biographical Dictionary of American Architects (Deceased)*. Los Angeles: Hennessey & Engalls, 1970 (reprint of 1956 edition).

BECOME A MEMBER! Together we can	ensure the preservation of	of the historic visual character	of Lake Forest. Join on line at www.LFPF.org
□ \$40 Historic Friend □ \$75 Historic Friends Basic Membership for two	□ \$125 Foundation □ \$300 Landmark S □ \$500 Preservation	ociety	□ \$1,000 Preservation Benefactor □ \$3,000 1861 Society / Life Member
Membership at all levels includes: Discounts on opportunities. Updates on preservation issues. Re receive complimentary admission to annual Holic	cognition in the Annu	al Report. At the Foundati	on Partner level and above, members
☐ Tributes and Remembrances: Honor a friend	or loved one by makin	g a gift to the Foundation.	\$
Gift in the name of:			
Name			
Address			
Telephone	email		
☐ My/Our check made payable to The Lake Fore	est Preservation Found	ation is enclosed.	
☐ Charge to: ☐ Visa ☐ Mastercard		☐ I have enclosed my emp	ployer's matching gift form.
Account Number	Expiration Date		
Signature			

# UPDATE ON REVISION OF LAKE FOREST'S EAST SIDE HISTORIC DISTRICT

This Spring, the city of Lake Forest received a Certified Local Government grant from the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency to update our National Register Historic District on Lake Forest's east side. The District nomination was written in 1976 and leaves out a considerable amount of information on the significance of the area. The focus of that nomination was on buildings constructed before 1926 (those then more than 50 years old), and many important buildings were not even mentioned.

Benjamin Historic Certifications (Susan Benjamin, Gwen Sommers Yant and Courtney Gray Resnick), City staff and many members of the Preservation Foundation are working on revising the nomination. A survey of all the buildings that have become fifty years old since 1998, when Suzanne Germain finished the City's survey, and of all buildings that have been altered or constructed since 1998 has been completed. Foundation volunteers Sally Wimmer, Rommy Lopat, Gail Hodges, Pauline Mohr, Shirley Paddock and Linda Liang have been working with Susan and Gwen to record building permit data on these buildings. This phase is now complete, and the information is currently being entered on the Survey Data base by Megan O'Neill; it will be completed by early October. As soon as the leaves fall, all of the buildings researched will be photographed.

The second phase is under way, with Art Miller contributing historical research and Susan Benjamin gathering architectural information. Others, including Paul Bergmann, and others who wish to be involved, will be contributing to this effort. The research will be wound up by the end of the year and writing will begin. The revised nomination will be completed by June, 2011, and the City will have a National Register document equal in importance to the excellent, more recent National Register listings.

Susan Benjamin, Benjamin Historic Certifications

# NOTE OF APPRECIATION FOR PETER COUTANT

This November, Peter Coutant will be leaving his position as Senior Planner for the City of Lake Forest after thirteen years. In a recent letter to Peter, President Tom Daly noted his openness, competence and patience with petitioners, his ability to grasp changes presented in petitions and his fortitude in following the process through to completion.

The Foundation recognizes Peter's respect for historic preservation and appreciates his shared understanding of what drastic change would do to the visual character of Lake Forest. We wish him well in his future endeavors. He leaves Lake Forest with the admiration and thanks of Foundation members. We will miss him.

Sarah Wimmer, Past President, Honorary Director

# PRESERVATION FOUNDATION OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

#### Officers

Thomas Daly – President Suzanne Boren– V.P. Membership Jan Gibson – V.P. Programs Gail Hodges – Secretary Dennis Johnston – Treasurer

## **Directors**

Norman Abplanalp Kristen Chen Len Dedo Stephen Douglass

Jerry Henry Patty Kreischer Cynthia Leahy

John Litchfield Rommy Lopat

Linda Medema

Pauline Mohr

Liz Moore

Alice F. Moulton-Ely Joy Murawski

Shirley Paddock William Redfield

Carl Silberman

Camille Stohlgren

# Immediate Past President

Arthur H. Miller

# **Honorary Directors**

Herbert G. Geist

Gail T. Hodges

Linda L. Shields

Lorraine Tweed

Henry P. Wheeler

Sarah Wimmer

# Past Presidents

Edward H. Bennett, Jr. 1976-1978
Gayle K. Dompke 1978-1980
Gail T. Hodges 1980-1982
Herbert Geist 1982-1984
Lorraine A. Tweed 1984-1986
Henry P. Wheeler 1986-1988
Sarah Wimmer 1988-1990, 1992-1993
Linda A. Shields 1990-1992, 2001-2003
Pauline M. Mohr 1993-1995, 1997-1999
Richard J. DuBourdieu 1995-1997
Edward H. Bennett, III 1999-2001
Alice Moulton-Ely 2003-2005
James F. Herber 2005-2007

### **Executive Director**

Marcy Kerr

# THE LAKE FOREST PRESERVATION FOUNDATION WISHES TO THANK THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS FOR THEIR

1861 Society - Life Members

Art Institute of Chicago

Mr. & Mrs. David Baier

Mr. & Mrs. Edward H. Bennett, III

Mr. Fred Berghorn

Mr. & Mrs. Harold G. Bernthal

Mr. & Mrs. William W. Block

Mr. & Mrs. Cameron Brown

Mr. & Mrs. John H. Bryan, Jr.

Dr. Barbara J. Buchbinder

Mrs. Mignon Buehler

Mr. & Mrs. Barry J. Carroll

Mr. & Mrs. Henry T. Chandler

Mr. & Mrs. Granger Cook, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Robert Crawford Mrs. Thomas E. Donnelley, II

Mrs. Thomas E. Eckland

First Baptist Church

Mr. & Mrs. Jon B. Gerster

Griffith, Grant & Lackie Realtors

Mr. & Mrs. Kenneth M. Harvey

Mrs. E. F. Heizer, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Joseph F. Huber

Mr. & Mrs. Michael J. Koob

Mr. & Mrs. John H. Krehbiel, Jr.

Lake Forest Garden Club

Mr. & Mrs. James F. Leahy

Mr. & Mrs. Sean Leahy

Macy's

Mr. & Mrs. Miles Marsh

Mr. David Mattoon

Mr. & Mrs. Michael A. Miles

Mr. & Mrs. Robert Moulton-Ely

Mr. & Mrs. John D. Mueller

Mrs. Robert P. Neuschel

Mr. & Mrs. Neil D. Nicastro

Mr. & Mrs. Richard M. Norton

Ms. Heather Heiberger &

Mr. C. J. Oates

Mr. Bruce P. Olson

Mr. Byron Prais

Mrs. Christine L. Shaw

Mr. & Mrs. Robert G. Shaw

Mr. Herbert F. Stride

Ms. Audrey M. Vanderaa

Mr. & Mrs. Cornelius B. Waud

Mr. & Mrs. Henry J. West

#### Preservation Circle - Patron

Anonymous

Mr. George W. Blossom, III

Mr. & Mrs. Nicholas Chabraja

Mrs. Wesley M. Dixon, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Samuel J. Henry

The J.M. Kapland Fund

Mr. & Mrs. Douglas M. Kinney

Mr. & Mrs. David MacKenzie

Mr. & Mrs. Roger J. Mohr

Mr. & Mrs. Robert S. Morrison Mrs. William L. Searle

Mr. & Mrs. Peter S. West

Landmark Society - Sustaining

Mr. & Mrs. Richard L. Baker

Mr. & Mrs. Ralph Behrens

Mrs. William H. Billington, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. W. Allen Davies

Mr. & Mrs. Len Dedo

Mr. & Mrs. Rodger Deromedi

Mr. John Drummond &

Ms. Romalda Lopat

Mr. & Mrs. Christopher J. Gannon

Mr. & Mrs. Leonard Golan

Mrs. Margaret S. Hart

Mr. & Mrs. Philip Hartung

Mr. & Mrs. Roger Hull

Mr. & Mrs. Thomas B. Hunter IV

Mr. Frederic R. Klein &

Ms. Frieda P. Jacobs

Mr. & Mrs. Paul Krauss

Mr. & Mrs. Desmond R. La Place

Mr. & Mrs. Alan J. Lacy

Mr. & Mrs. John S. Lillard

Mr. & Mrs. Steven Mardjetko

Mr. Frank Mariani

Dr. & Mrs. Mark G. Neerhof

Mr. & Mrs. Richard Price

Mr. & Mrs. David E. Radcliffe

Mr. & Mrs. John Screiber

Mr. & Mrs. Gerald N. Shields

Mr. & Mrs. Adrian Smith

Ms. Elizabeth Twede

Mrs. Herbert A. Vance

Mr. & Mrs. William C. Vance

Mr. & Mrs. Mark Westcott

Mr. & Mrs. Henry P. Wheeler

Dr. & Mrs. Jeffrey Zoul

# Foundation Partner - Sponsor

Mr. & Mrs. Norman Abplanalp

Ms. Sara Jane Anderson

Mr. & Mrs. Gordon Bent

Mr. & Mrs. Thomas Bernardin

Ms. Suzanne G. Boren

Mr. & Mrs. Charles C. Bowen

Mr. & Mrs. Charles M. Brennan, III

Mr. & Mrs. Brian J. Brodeur

Mr. & Mrs. William Brown

Dr. & Mrs. Brian S. Bryzinski

Mr. & Mrs. Richard Bull

Mr. & Mrs. Bruce Burnham

Mr. & Mrs. M. David Cain

Mr. Richard C. Carlson

Mr. & Mrs. Richard J. Chapman

Mr. & Mrs. J. S. Cole

Mr. & Mrs. Vincent J. Conroy, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. William A. Crane

Mr. & Mrs. James DeAcetis

Ms. Athalie Derse

Mr. Claudio DiVagno

Mr. & Mrs. Richard Dompke

Mr. & Mrs. David E. Donovan

Mrs. Madeleine B. Dugan

Mr. Dennis L. Dunlap

Mr. & Mrs. Basil J. Falcone

Mr. Herbert G. Geist

Mr. & Mrs. Otto Georgi

Mr. & Mrs. Robert P. Geudtner

Mr. & Mrs. James J. Glasser

Mr. & Mrs. Ambrose M.

Glombowski Mr. & Mrs. Michael Goldstein

Mrs. Jean McBride Greene

Mr. Philippe Hans

Mr. & Mrs. Kirk Hanselman

Mr. & Mrs. Mark Hausberg

Mr. & Mrs. Philip G. Henderson

Mr. & Mrs. James F. Herber

Ms. Lisa Hilgenberg

Mr. & Mrs. James A. Hodges, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Reed Hoehstra

Mr. & Mrs. William J. Hughes

Ms. Anne Hunting & Mr. Ari Mintz

Ms. Judith Inglese Ms. Diane Janson

Mr. & Mrs. Richard Johnsen

Mr. & Mrs. Dennis W. Johnston

Mr. & Mrs. Jan Jorfald

Mr. & Mrs. Richard Kissel

Ms. Mary Kneibler

Mr. & Mrs. Robert Kolar

Mr. & Mrs. John W. Kozak

Mrs. Loomis Lincoln

Mr. & Mrs. Andrew M. Lind Mr. & Mrs. David G. Linville

Mr. & Mrs. John Litchfield

Mr. & Mrs. William F. Lloyd

Ms. Jean Lowe

Mr. & Mrs. D. Scott Maentz

Mr. & Mrs. J. Brinke Marcuccilli Mr. Robert J. Marshall

Mr. & Mrs. David B. Mathis

Mr. & Mrs. Roger E. Medema

Dr. & Mrs. Arthur H. Miller, Jr. Mr. & Mrs. John R. Moore

Mr. & Mrs. German Moreno

Mr. & Mrs. Larry Mosner

Mr. & Mrs. David Murawski

Mrs. Daniel T. Murphy Mr. & Mrs. Grant Noble

Mr. & Mrs. George A. Pandaleon Ms. Jane S. Partridge

Mr. & Mrs. Robert A. Paul

Mrs. George Polk

Mr. & Mrs. Frank Ponterio

Mr. David J. Poulton & Ms. Sharon Harvey

Mr. & Mrs. Clayton O. Pruitt

Mr. & Mrs. Thomas Norman Rajkovich

Mr. & Mrs. William H. Redfield

Mrs. Corrine V. Reichert

Mr. & Mrs. John F. Remington

Mr. & Mrs. Daniel M. Riess

Ms. Sandra L. Riggs

Mr. & Mrs. Thomas H. Ritter

Mr. & Mrs. William Schumann

Mrs. William Sedlek

Mr. & Mrs. Richard Seidel

Col. & Mrs. Lawrence R. Stack

Ms. Nancy Statza

Mr. & Mrs. James P. Stirling

Mr. & Mrs. Jon B. Stromberg

Mr. & Mrs. Walter Sunseri

Mr. & Mrs. Ronald Tesarik Mr. Jerome Tunney

Mr. & Mrs. Robert E. Tweed

Mr. & Mrs. Frederick Wacker III

Mr. & Mrs. David B. Waud Mr. & Mrs. Morris S. Weeden

Mr. & Mrs. William White III

Mr. & Mrs. Donaild Williams

Mrs. Sarah Wimmer

Mr. Kent Woloson

Mr. & Mrs. Kirk M. Wolter Mr. & Mrs. Eugene L. Woroch

Historic Friends - Family

Mr. Henry N. Adamson

Mr. Stanley D. Anderson, Jr. Mr. & Mrs. Basil Athenson

Mr. & Mrs. Allen R. Bartine

Mr. & Mrs. Wayne Benjamin

Mr. & Mrs. William Blodgett Mr. & Mrs. Malcolm G. Bourne, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Stephen Brewster

Mr. & Mrs. Donald Brown Mr. Kenneth H. Buchanan

Mr. & Mrs. Raymond S. Buck Mr. & Mrs. Edward Buker

Mr. & Mrs. David Burgess

Mr. & Mrs. Paul Burt

Mr. & Mrs. Raymond P. Buschmann Mr. & Mrs. Rhett W. Butler

Mr. & Mrs. Peter Roy Carney Ms. Kathleen Carpenter &

Mr. Jack Gould

Mr. & Mrs. Douglas J. Cassidy Col. & Mrs. Alan D. Champ

Mr. & Mrs. R. Scott Cummins Mr. & Mrs. Richard S. Cutler

Mr. & Mrs. Thomas Daly

# GENEROUS contributions & support throughout our 2010 MEMBERSHIP YEAR

Mr. & Mrs. Donald Deubler
Mr. Clifford R. Duske
Dr. & Mrs. Walter Falkowski
Mr. & Mrs. Victor Filippini
Mr. & Mrs. Charles Fitzgerald
Mr. & Mrs. Dale Galassie
Mr. & Mrs. Leslie R. Graham
Mr. & Mrs. Victor Grossi
Mr. & Mrs. Charles Hansen
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Hermes
Mr. & Mrs. Richard S. Holson, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. James Isenberg
Mr. & Mrs. Frederick E. Jackson
Dr. & Mrs. William Janes
Mr. & Mrs. Allan Janis
Mr. & Mrs. Ernest Janus
Mr. & Mrs. Jerome M. Johnson
Dr. & Mrs. Philip N. Jones
Dr. & Mrs. Daniel J. Kelly
Mr. & Mrs. A. Stewart Kerr
Mr. & Mrs. John Kipp
Mr. & Mrs. James Kreutzer
Mr. & Mrs. James P. Kuhn
Mr. & Mrs. Eric Landen
Mr. & Mrs. Geoffrey W. Luce
Mr. & Mrs. Donald Lynch
Ms. Billie MacArthur
Mr. & Mrs. Rick Mancuso
Mr. & Mrs. John J. McDonough
Mr. & Mrs. Samuel E. McTier
Mr. & Mrs. Terence M. Mieling
Mr. & Mrs. Christopher R. Moore
Mr. & Mrs. William N. Morell, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Harold Morrison
Mr. & Mrs. Michael Morton
Mr. & Mrs. Jim O'Connor
Mr. & Mrs. Peter O'Malley
Mrs. Shirley Paddock
Mr. & Mrs. Edward Paluga
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas C. Papastefar
Ms. Cheryl Pettit
Mr. & Mrs. Rick Phillips
Mr. & Mrs. Alexander J. Pollock
Mr. & Mrs. Robert J. Pommer
Dr. & Mrs. Alfred Price
Mrs. F.A. Priebe Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Todd Puch
Mr. & Mrs. Michael Rafferty
Mr. & Mrs. John P. Reilly
Mr. & Dr. Lawrence Remensnyde
Mr. & Mrs. Scott Rempala
Mr. & Mrs. Timothy Richmond
Mr. & Mrs. Theodore H. Roberts
Mr. & Mrs. Lawrence Roebel
Mr. & Mrs. Frank Rogalski
Mr. & Mrs. Ted Rojahn
Mr. & Mrs. Rob Ross
Mr. & Mrc Charles Pour

Mr. & Mrs. Charles Rowe

Mr. & Mrs. Robert Salzwedel

Mr. & Mrs. Thomas Sheffield Mr. & Mrs. Frank J. Sibley Dr. Carl Silberman Mr. & Mrs. Stephen M. Slavin Mr. & Mrs. John Gelston Smith Mr. & Mrs. Wendell E. Standley Mr. & Mrs. Joseph W. Steele Mr. & Mrs. Keith Stolgren Mr. & Mrs. James Stokes Mr. & Mrs. Dale Taubensee Mr. & Mrs. Robert Troxel Mr. & Mrs. Scott Turner Rev. & Mrs. Ronald Valentine Mr. & Mrs. Mark Ventling Mr. & Mrs. Frank Ventura Ms. Susan Vertrees Mr. & Mrs. John Vratimos Mr. & Mrs. Kevin C. Warnke Mr. & Mrs. Robert J. Washlow Mr. & Mrs. David Wesson Mr. & Mrs. Richard Weithas Mr. & Mrs. Emmett White Mr. & Mrs. Paul I. Wisner Mr. & Mrs. Kenneth Wood Mr. & Mrs. James Zitnick Historic Friend - Individual

Mrs. Keene H. Addington, II Ms. Brunhild Baass Mrs. Robert L. Banks Ms. Tiffany Banner Mr. David Barnes Ms. Elaine Barrett Mrs. Susan Beacham Mr. Guy Berg Mr. Paul Bergmann Mrs. Edwin R. Blomquist Mrs. Judith Boggess Mrs. Eleanor S. Borders Ms. Anne Bruce Mrs. Kate Buckardt Mrs. Thomas J. Carbol Mrs. John L. Carl Mr. William Austin Castle Ms. Catherine W. Champ Mrs. Ron Coolley Mrs. Richard Cordell Dr. Rosemary Cowler Ms. Amy Davidson Ms. Joan D. DePree Ms. Peg Determan Mr. John Diefendach Mr. Stephen Douglass Ms. Charenton Zelov Drake Mrs. Leonard C. Everson

Mrs. Cameron Farwell

Mrs. Laura Fellows

Mrs. Patricia R. Finn

Ms. Gloria J. Frank

Mr. Fritz A. Fredrickson Dr. Bernice Gallagher Hon. Susan E. Garrett Ms. Carol Gayle Mrs. R. Thomas Gibson Ms. Janet M. Gibson Ms. Carol Gilbert Mrs. John Glynn Mr. Jack Goggin Mr. Barry Goodman Ms. Blanche Hall Mrs. Edward J. Halle Ms. Marguerite D. Hambling Mr. Douglas A. Hayward Ms. Jerry L. Woods Hendron Ms. Dawn Hildebrandt Mr. Earle Hodgen Ms. Sarah L. Hughes Mr. Allan J. Jacobs Mrs. Sarah C. Jimenez Ms. Mary Ann Johnson Ms. Sue Johnson Ms. Susan Kelsey Ms. Betty Lou Klingenberg Mr. Lynn C. Knutson Ms. Marlene R. Koe Mr. Joseph G. Krakora Mrs. Patricia Kreischer Mrs. Suzanne M. Laundry Ms. Cynthia Leigh Mrs. Jane Lepauw Ms. Kathy Levy Mrs. George Lyon Mrs. William H. Magill Mrs. Alfred William Marwede Ms. Mary Ellen McGoey Mrs. Richard McMurrin Mr. Peter Mead Mrs. Donna Mercier Mr. Christopher Mlynarczyk Mr. Steven B. Monz Ms. Benita S. Myles Ms. Leslie H. Newman Ms. Elizabeth Norton Mrs. Raymond D. Oddi Mr. David O'Neill Mr. James Opsitnik Ms. Patricia Ortseifen

Mr. Joseph H. Pawlish

Ms. Barbara Peterson

Ms. Eva Polydoris

Mrs. William Reidy

Ms. Kathleen Reidy

Mr. Robert Roloson

Ms. Geraldine Peterson

Ms. Winifred M. Reidy

Ms. Martha M. ReQua

Mrs. William J. Roberts

Mrs. Bernard G. Peter, Jr.

Mr. Donald B. Romans Dr. Carlotta Rotman Mrs. Robert Saffrin Ms. Miriam Sanders Ms. Marilyn Saran Ms. Judy Sauder Mr. Karl Schmidt Mr. Franz Schulze Mrs. Covington Shackleford Mrs. Howard Shank Mr. George Speros Ms. Elizabeth Sperry Mr. Charles J. Starcevich Mrs. Gwyneth E. Stetson Ms. Kathleen A. Stevenson Mr. John A. Stevenson, Sr. Mr. Marc Straits Ms. Tina H. Strauss Mrs. Alfred Stroh Mr. Stewart Swift Mrs. John Reid Taylor Mrs. Ralph D. Teich Ms. Marsha D. Temple Ms. Penelope TerHaar Mrs. Dominic Turchi Ms. Cassandra Vermillion Ms. Ellen Wallace Ms. Kay Weston Ms. Edana Westrich Mr. Lloyd P. Zuckerberg Tributes and Honory Members of Commerce Lake Forest/Lake BLuff Historical Society Lake Forest Library Mr. Loomis Lincoln Ragdale Mrs. Patricia Reiss

Lake Forest/Lake Bluff Chamber Mr. & Mrs. Gregory Swenson Mr. & Mrs. Mark Williams

# Corporporate Donors

Craig Bergmann Landscape Design George Baldwin Plastering Knauz Auto Group Lake Forest Shop Lake Forest Sportscar Mariani Landscape Melichar Architects Network Savvy, Inc. The Grille on Laurel Weban Funeral Home



# The Lake Forest Preservation Foundation

400 East Illinois Road, Lake Forest, Illinois 60045 • www.lfpf.org

NON-PROFIT ORG U.S. POSTAGE PAID PERMIT NO. 184 LAKE FOREST, IL 60045

# HELP PROTECT THE PAST FOR THE FUTURE

As the Lake Forest Preservation Foundation looks forward to 2011 and its 35th anniversary we welcome you to become a member of our dynamic group. Membership gives you an opportunity to learn more about the historic areas of Lake Forest, its architects and home owners. Your membership in the Preservation Foundation is your ticket to exclusive historic neighborhood and home tours.

Want to know more about architectural elements and building materials? How they all relate? What works, what doesn't? Programs with expert speakers have the answers for you. Social events such as the Christmas Party and the Annual Meeting where preservation award winners are celebrated are not to be missed. What is most important about membership in the Preservation Foundation is that you become a partner in the Foundation as we continue to work toward our mission of conserving and preserving the historic visual character of our community. Memberships also bring in the vital funds needed by the Foundation to underwrite preservation projects and to give restoration grants. Past recipients include Gorton, Ragdale, Dickinson Hall, Elawa Farm and the Walden Bridge.

The Board and members of the Preservation Foundation believe that we have a responsibility to future generations to continue the vision as those in the past did for us. JOIN US!

Linda Shields, Past President, Honorary Director

# PROGRAM COMMITTEE SCHEDULE 2010 & 2011

# November 14, 2010 - 2 pm to 4 pm

Historic Windows presented by Elizabeth Logman (Midwest Preservation LLP) & Anthony Rubano (Illinois Historic Preservation Agency) Slide program at Gorton and reception at a private home following the program

# December 5, 2010 - 2 pm to 4 pm

Annual holiday party Private home

#### March 2011 (TBD)

History of Prominent Architecture - A Tour in Lake Forest

# May 15, 2011

Annual Meeting & Awards Presentation Program and Reception

# June 2011 (TBD)

3rd Annual Family Fair in Market Square

#### **September 10, 2011**

Lake Forest Celebrates Its Own Preservation Movement

# **BECOME A MEMBER!**

Together we can ensure the preservation of the historic visual character of Lake Forest.

Join on line at www.LFPF.org